
MINUTES 
CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

December 12, 2011 

The City Commission met this date in regular session in the Commission Chambers.  The 
Invocation was given by Comm. Strong, after which the Pledge of Allegiance was recited.  A 
quorum being present, the meeting was called to order at 6:00 PM with the following in 
attendance. 

 
  Mayor    : John. B. Arnold, Jr. 
  Commissioners  : Heyward H. Strong, Jr. 
      : Thomas G. Miller 
      : Neal Shermer 
      : Diane Kelley 
  City Clerk   : Tammy Johnson 
  City Administrator  : Carl Scott 
  Police Chief   : Joe Hart 
  Fire Chief   : Mark Norris 
  City Attorney   : Doug Wyckoff 
  City Engineer   : Roy Petrey 
  Recorder   : Lois Davis 

Others in attendance: (Not inclusive) James Butler (Cameraman), Edward A. Crosby, 
Fonzie Winkler, Katie Holbrook, Terry Griffin, Don Caverly, Tanna Dean, Stacy Brown, Joe 
Morgan 

 
NEW AGENDA ITEMS  - Added Agenda Items - Indian Shores Homeowners 
Association - Street Repair Update/Trash Truck Residue Concerns 
In Mr. Winkler’s PowerPoint Presentation he indicated various addresses in Indian 

Shores, (107 and 111 Arrowpoint Cove, Jasmine near Chatot Park, 102 Aucilla, 113 Safe 
Harbor, Safe Harbor and Jasmine, and 398 Jasmine showing alleged trash truck residue and 
damaged manhole covers.  Mayor Arnold stated that there was no hydraulic fuels spilled on the 
roads and upon investigation, stated that it looked like someone had fried a bunch of turkeys and 
dumped the grease there.  Comm. Miller asked if someone actually saw where this came from.  
Mr. Winkler stated that the results of the borings should be passed to Mr. Able, the President of 
the Indian Shores Homeowners Association.  Mayor Arnold stated that Mr. Winkler did a very 
credible job in making this presentation.  Mr. Petrey stated that Indian Shores was constructed in 
1992 and that they did some borings last summer, finding some charred remains indicative of an 
Indian site.  He stated that it appears to be an old burn and the contractor failed to remove all the 
old material.  Mr. Petrey stated that they are well past the statute of limitations, but he did 
contact the contractor on this.  He stated that the contractor is willing to share some of the cost.  
Mr. Petrey stated that the contractor said they were behind the curve on some projects, and asked 
that they wait until they had some free time.  He will get back in touch with the contractor, and 
indicated that there could be some shared costs.  Mr. Petrey stated that he does not know if it will 
be more than the Street Commissioner can authorize, which is $25,000.  He stated that it will be 
sufficient to handle 107 Arrow Point Cove, but he doesn’t think that the homeowners will be 
happy with a patch in front of one house.  Mr. Petrey stated that he will be happy to share the 
borings with Indian Shores.  He stated that this is a rather low area and has been subject to a lot 
of water at different times.  Mr. Petrey stated that he thinks that this might be what is causing the 
cracks, etc.  He stated that as far as the manhole covers, this is something that Public Works 
needs to schedule repairs.  Mr. Petrey asked that Mr. Winkler come back and they will give him 
an update at the regular Commission meeting in January.  Mayor Arnold asked that Comm. 
Miller and Mr. Petrey meet to discuss this, and give a report at the January Commission meeting.  
Mr. Winkler agreed to attend the January meeting.  Comm. Strong assured Mr. Winkler that the 
manhole covers will be fixed.   
1. CITIZENS’ CONCERNS (non-agenda items) - Resident 
 There were no resident comments.   
2. CITIZENS’ CONCERNS (non-agenda items) - Non-resident 
 There were no non-resident comments 
2. NEW AGENDA ITEMS  - Interlocal Agreement Public Schools Facility Planning. 
 Mayor Arnold stated that the City has received notification from the Town of Cinco 
Bayou that they have withdrawn from the 2008 Interlocal Agreement for Public School Facility 
Planning (executed December, 2006 and approved by the State in October 2008).  He stated that 
he also assumes that the City should do the same thing; however, Mr. Wyckoff stated that it 
might not be a very wise thing to do.  Comm. Shermer asked that they do some research first on 
the pros and cons before trying to make a decision.  He suggested that the item be placed on the 
January 2012 agenda, but Comm. Strong stated whenever they get it done.  
3. NEW AGENDA ITEMS  - G&K Services Settlement Agreement  
 Mr. Wyckoff stated that a G&K Service Settlement Agreement concerns a contract, 
which wasn’t very satisfactory, predated Mr. Valandingham, and ultimately had some issues.  He 
stated that G&K was claiming that the City owed $14,414.49, plus 25% contingency for attorney 

Indian 
Shores 
Home- 
owners 
Associa- 
tion  
Street  
Repair 
Update/ 
Trash 
Truck 
Residue 
Concerns 

Citizens’ 
Concerns 
Resident 
 
Citizens’ 
Concerns 
Non-
resident 
 
Interlocal 
Agreement 
Public 
Schools 
Facility 
Planning 
 
 
 
 
G&K 
Settlement 
Agreement 



  
 
 

fees.  Mr. Wyckoff stated that he was able to negotiate G&K down to a settlement amount of 
$3,000 which is an amount similar to what it would take for the City to prepare, file and argue a 
motion for summary judgment.  He stated that he brings this for the Commission approval for 
settlement.  Mr. Wyckoff stated that it is his understanding that the City has already saved 
$11,000 in costs and that they will save quite a bit more.  He recommended that the City enter 
into a Settlement Agreement and authorize the Mayor to sign, and to prepare a check to be sent 
out tomorrow.  COMM. SHERMER MADE A MOTION TO ENTER INTO A SETTLMENT 
AGREEMENT ($3,000) WITH G&K SERVICES, INC. AND TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR 
TO SIGN.  COMM. STRONG SECONDED THE MOTION, WHICH PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY WITH A 5 - 0 VOTE OF THE COMMISSION.  In response to Mrs. 
Johnson’s inquiry concerning whether the funds will be from Public Works, Comm. Shermer 
stated that the percentages could be broken down the same way that the uniforms are paid, 
indicating that the Sanitation Department pays the most.  Since this is urgent, the check will be 
mailed tomorrow.    
4. NEW AGENDA ITEMS  - Resolution 20-12-12-11 Police and Firefighter Pension  

Reforms 
Mayor Arnold read the resolution and stated that it basically says that if there is an award, 

it is not based on presumption, but proof.  Comm. Strong stated that all the cities have been 
working this for about three years.  He stated that the mandate passed in 1998 took this away, 
and he further stated that a lot of cities and counties have found a tremendous budget deficit as a 
result of the mandate.  Comm. Strong stated that the League of Cities has asked that all cities 
pass this and send to the Governor and Legislature.  COMM. STRONG MADE A MOTION TO 
ADOPT RESOLUTION 20-12-12-11 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF VALPARAISO 
SUPPORTING POLICE OFFICER AND FIREFIGHTER PENSION PLAN AND DISABILITY 
PRESUMPTION REFORMS TO MAKE THE PLANS SUSTAINABLE, SOUND AND 
SECURE FOR CURRENT AND FUTURE POLICE OFFICERS AND FIREFIGHTERS.  
MAYOR ARNOLD SECONDED THE MOTION, WHICH PASSED UNANIMOUSLY WITH 
A 5 - 0 VOTE OF THE COMMISSION.   
5. NEW AGENDA ITEMS  - Sidewalk Extension Consideration 

In connection with the sidewalk extension for Grandview Avenue from Jasmine Avenue 
to Kelley Lane, Mr. Scott stated that the City petitioned the FDOT and they approved $18,000 
for construction, $2,500 for design and $2,500 for CEI work.  He stated that the particular lady 
who wants the sidewalks lives on Kelley Lane.  COMM. MILLER MADE A MOTION TO 
EXTEND THE SIDEWALK ON GRANDVIEW AVENUE, IF THEY HAVE SUFFICIENT 
FUNDS.  COMM. SHERMER SECONDED THE MOTION.  Mr. Scott further stated that the 
residents on Grandview Avenue have not been asked.  Mr. Griffin stated that he talked to a lot of 
the residents and this is the only place where there is a concentration of children (nine).  Mr. 
Petrey stated that this extension would be funded through the grant. Mr. Morgan stated that 
maybe they would like to amend the motion, indicating that he would rather not presume that the 
residents want the sidewalks, and check with them before they put them in.  He stated that he 
would like to have Mr. Scott call and ask the residents what they want sidewalks.  Comm. Miller 
stated that they have a safety issue.  Mr. Morgan stated that before they spend money, the 
residents affected should be asked.   Mr. Wyckoff stated that the item could be continued until 
next month; however, Mr. Petrey stated that this will put them beyond the contract date, which 
ends about the middle of January.  Mr. Petrey stated if they are going to do this, they need to 
notify the contractor.  In response to Comm. Shermer’s inquiry, Mr. Scott stated that they were 
talking about six to nine houses.  Chief Hart stated that there are several lanes that go down from 
Grandview Avenue, and he asked if Mr. Morgan was talking about a simple majority.  Mrs. 
Johnson asked if they were only talking about the property that abuts Grandview Avenue.  
Comm. Strong stated that he thinks they should poll the people on both sides of Grandview 
Avenue.  Mr. Wyckoff asked whose lots were the sidewalks going on, and indicating that they 
are the ones that have planted shrubs, etc.  Mayor Arnold stated that they are discussing a 
possibility of an amendment to the motion.  Mr. Wyckoff stated that Comm. Miller would have 
to move to amend and Comm. Shermer would have to withdraw his second.  In  response to 
Comm. Shermer’s comment about moving forward with the current motion, Mr. Petrey stated 
that it would be the middle of January before they finish and the contractor will have to know if 
they have to continue.  Mr. Petrey stated that he would not want to move forward if the City does 
not know that they want sidewalks.  Mayor Arnold then stated that it would be City funds, not 
grant funds.  Mr. Morgan stated that since it is truly a change, he thinks going forward like this, 
and if for some reason they need to withdraw,  they could have it stopped.  Mayor Arnold stated 
that he thinks they can proceed if fifty percent of the residents want sidewalks.  Mr. Scott stated 
that he can get this done tomorrow.  COMM. SHERMER WITHDREW HIS SECOND.  
COMM. MILLER AMENDED HIS MOTION TO PROCEED WITH SIDEWALKS ON 
GRANDVIEW AVENUE FROM JASMINE AVENUE TO KELLEY LANE PROVIDING 
FIFTY PERCENT OF THE AFFECTED PROPERTY OWNERS ON THE BAY SIDE 
APPROVE.  COMM. SHERMER SECONDED THE MOTION, WHICH PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY WITH A 5 - 0 VOTE OF THE COMM.  Mr. Scott will contact Mr. Petrey 
after he finds out how many of the affected property owners on the bay side want the sidewalks.   

Resolution 
No. 
20-12-12-11 
Police and 
Firefighter 
Pension 
Reforms 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Sidewalk 
Extension 
Considera- 
tion 
 



  
 
 

1. OLD BUSINESS - Gulf Power Franchise Update 
2. OLD BUSINESS - Gulf Power Pole License Agreement 

Mr. Wyckoff stated that the only news he has is that he has requested several time what 
calculations they used to derive the pole attachment rates; however, they have provided no 
response.  He stated that the City used the FCC regulation, but Gulf Power is using $1.50 per 
pole per year more.  Mr. Wyckoff stated that the last time, he recommended to find out where the 
$7.00 plus comes from, so the lawyer in St. Louis requested that Gulf Power tell the City, but 
they have not said anything.    
3. OLD BUSINESS - Sidewalk Update 
 Mr. Petrey stated that the sidewalks are on schedule as planned and that the duration 
should be about three or four weeks.  He stated that an audit was conducted this week to go over 
the contractor’s activities.  Mr. Petrey stated that the audit found nothing, just a lot of paper 
shuffle.   
4. OLD BUSINESS - School Charter Study Status 

Comm. Shermer stated that the School Charter Study Status is continuing under 164 
Conflict Resolution process, and he further stated that he thinks it is going well.  He stated that 
he is looking forward to the next meeting.  Comm. Miller asked if there would be sufficient 
parking at the Valparaiso Elementary School site, if they bring in STEMM.  Comm. Shermer 
stated that these are all things to be discussed and he will bring these up at the meeting.  He 
stated that he will update Comm. Miller at the next regular Commission meeting.  Comm. Kelley 
stated that if it is a middle school STEMM, the students would not be driving to school.   
 Mayor Arnold stated that on January 10, 2011, Comm. Strong made a motion for Comm. 
Shermer to investigate the possibility of a charter school at the Valparaiso Elementary School 
site which passed unanimously with a 3 - 0 vote of the Commission.  He then stated that he felt 
that Comm. Shermer’s work has been completed.  Comm. Shermer stated “No”.  Mayor Arnold 
stated that he thinks that the general public feels that the City of Valparaiso is supporting 
Somerset Academy, which is far from our mission.  He stated that he thinks that the 
Commission’s activity that was envisioned has been fulfilled.  Comm. Shermer stated that the 
study about a charter school is ongoing and he thinks they need to keep the study going.  Comm. 
Kelley agreed with Mayor Arnold.  She stated that Comm. Shermer has done more than 
investigate.  Comm. Shermer stated that there is more investigating to be done.  Mr. Wyckoff 
stated that Comm. Shermer has been appointed to the team.  Mayor Arnold stated that Comm. 
Shermer’s task has been accomplished.  He further stated that he would imagine that there are 
more charter schools besides Somerset that might be interested.  Comm. Shermer stated that the 
Mayor cannot speak to the perception of the general public.  Comm. Kelley stated that it seems 
like the feeling was that Comm. Shemer was charged to investigate, not bring to fruition.  
Comm. Shermer stated I know how you feel.  Comm. Kelley stated that is not what I feel, this is 
what is in the record.  Mr. Griffin stated that he is one of the people of the general public and he 
feels that it has gone far enough.  He stated that he was an investigator his entire life and that 
thinks it is time to move on.  Comm. Strong stated that an elementary school is very important 
for our City.  He stated that the charter school has not been approved on the elementary school 
site.  Comm. Strong stated that he has a strong feeling that they need an elementary school in 
Valparaiso.  Comm. Kelley stated that they do have an elementary school; it is a combined 
school.  She stated that they do have elementary students; it just does not bear the name of 
Valparaiso School.   Comm. Shermer stated that Comm. Strong is pointing out that there needs 
to be an elementary school on the site.  Comm. Shermer stated that he is still studying and that he 
does not see how anyone can say they are not.  Comm. Kelley stated that investigate and study 
are two different things.   
5. OLD BUSINESS - Etc. - How to Dispose of Surplus Equipment 

Mayor Arnold stated that Mr. Scott has come up with a proposed method on how to 
dispose of surplus equipment.  He stated that they plan to establish operating procedures and 
instructions, i.e., method of hiring employees, disposing of surplus property, and etc.   
5. OLD BUSINESS - Etc. - ISO Inspection 

Comm. Strong stated that the ISO inspection is complete.  He stated that they are trying 
hard to maintain a 4 rating.  Chief Norris stated that the ISO is the Insurance Service 
Organization that inspects fire departments.  He stated that a 4 is a very respectable rating.  Chief 
Norris stated that the inspector looks at fire, water, sewer, and communication.  He further stated 
that Okaloosa Gas and Public Works did a good job in helping with the inspection.  Chief Norris 
stated that he hopes to receive the ISO rating in the first quarter of the new year and he will then 
share with the Commission as soon as he receives it.  He stated that the ISO rating is what all the 
insurance companies use to determine rates. 

Mr. Scott stated that the same organization rates the building inspection department.  He 
stated that the building inspection department moved from a 7 to a 5.  Mayor Arnold thanked Mr. 
Scott for this, and further stated that he has all the credentials to qualify for the Building 
Inspector position.  Mr. Scott stated that if the City maintains a 4 ISO rating, it will result in 
lower rates for insurance. 
2. REPORTS / CORRESPONDENCE / ANNOUNCEMENTS - Stormwater 

No issues to report.   

Gulf  
Power 
Franchise  
Update 
 
Gulf Power 
Pole 
License 
Agreement 
 
 
 
 
 
Sidewalk 
Update 
 
 
 

 
School 
Charter 
Study 
Status 

Operating 
Procedures/ 
Instructions 
 
 
 
 
ISO 
Inspection 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Stormwater 



  
 
 

3. REPORTS / CORRESPONDENCE / ANNOUNCEMENTS - Legal Activities 
Mr. Wyckoff reported that the City has been sued by Mr. Matt Willingham.  He sated that 

the League of Cities has stepped up on this and that it has been discussed to have a dismissal or 
summary judgment on this.   
5. REPORTS / CORRESPONDENCE / ANNOUNCEMENTS - Holiday Schedule 
 Mayor Arnold reported that the holiday schedule will be to close a noon on Friday, 
December 23, 2011, close Monday, December 26th and Monday, January 2, 2012.   
6. REPORTS / CORRESPONDENCE / ANNOUNCEMENTS - Etc. Christmas Party  

Mayor Arnold reminded the Commission that the Christmas Party would be held at 6:00 
PM on Thursday, December 15th.    
1. ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS  - Employee Christmas Bonuses 

The recommendation for employee Christmas bonuses was to give the same amount as 
last year, with all full time employees with one year or more service receiving $100, with the 
City to bear expenses for taxes and FICA.  MAYOR ARNOLD MADE A MOTION THAT ALL 
FULL TIME EMPLOYEES WITH ONE YEAR OR MORE SERVICE BE GIVEN A $150, 
FULL-TIME WITH SIX MONTHS TO ONE YEAR $50, PART-TIME WITH ONE YEAR OR 
MORE $75, ALL OTHER PART-TIME AND ON-CALL EMPLOYEES $35, ALL 
EMPLOYEES WITH LESS THAN SIX MONTHS $35.  COMM. MILLER SECONDED THE 
MOTION.  Comm. Shermer stated that he wants to simplify the bonus process, and further 
stating that he wasn’t aware that the Mayor was going to change the amount for full-time 
employees with one year or more from $100 to $150.  He stated that one of the problems with 
the way the bonuses are laid out is that there are too many different levels.  Comm. Shermer 
stated that he thinks all employees deserve a $100, and further stated that you cannot put a 
Christmas meal on the table for $35.  He stated that the only down side to giving all employees 
$100 is that there could be an employee that doesn’t work out and their service could terminate.  
Comm. Shermer stated that it would cost $7400 to give all employees a $100 bonus.  Comm. 
Miller stated that as long as the City has the money, he has no problem with it.  Mayor Arnold 
stated that with the original plan, they were awarding employees for their length of service, and 
Comm. Shermer stated that there in lies the extra $50.  Comm. Shermer stated that he has trouble 
with giving a full time employee less than $100.  In response to Mr. Wyckoff’s comment, 
Comm. Miller withdrew his second.  Mayor Arnold would not amend his motion.  COMM. 
SHERMER MADE A MOTION TO GIVE ALL 74 EMPLOYEES A $100 CHRISTMAS 
BONUS.  He stated that it would cost $900 more than the original amount of $6500.  COMM. 
MILLER SECONDED THE MOTION.  Mrs. Johnson inquired about taxes and FICA, which is 
about $8.28 per person.  The City will bear the expense of paying the taxes and FICA.  THE 
VOTE WAS HELD ON THE MOTION, WHICH PASSED WITH A VOTE OF 4 - 1, WITH 
MAYOR ARNOLD VOTING IN THE NEGATIVE.  Mayor Arnold stated that he felt that the 
employees deserve a bonus, but that he does not like the structure.   
2. ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS  - Minutes  
  COMM. STRONG MADE A MOTION THAT THE MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 3, 
2011, BE APPROVED AS WRITTEN.  COMM. SHERMER SECONDED THE MOTION, 
WHICH PASSED UNANIMOUSLY WITH A 5 - 0 VOTE OF THE COMMISSION.   

COMM. STRONG MADE A MOTION THAT THE MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 24, 
2011 BE APPROVED WITH THE FOLLOWING CHANGE.  REVISE LINE 37, PAGE 2, TO 
SAY, “……. notify the ISO inspector……….”  COMM. MILLER SECONDED THE MOTION, 
WHICH PASSED UNANIMOUSLY WITH A 5 - 0 VOTE OF THE COMMISSION.   
3. ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS  - Bills Payable 

COMM. KELLEY MADE A MOTION TO PAY THE REGULAR BILLS AND VCA 
BILLS AS OUTLINED IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT(S).  COMM. MILLER 
SECONDED THE MOTION, WHICH PASSED UNANIMOUSLY WITH A 5 - 0 VOTE OF 
THE COMMISSION.   

ADJOURN  
There being no further business to be brought before the Commission, the meeting 

adjourned at 7:25 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Minutes 
03 
November 
2011 
 
Minutes 
24 
November 
2011 
 
 
 
Bills 
Payable 
 
 
 
 

Adjourn 

Legal 
Activities 
 
 
 
 
Holiday 
Schedule 
 
 
Christmas 
Party 
 
 
 
Employee 
Christmas 
Bonuse 
 



  
 
 

 
 
 
 

     _______________________________ 
     John B. Arnold, Jr. 
     Mayor 
 
 
 
 
     ________________________________ 
     Thomas G. Miller 
     Chair, VCA 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Tammy Johnson, CMC 
City Clerk      December 12, 2011 
 ***The DVD labeled December 12, 2011 contains the audio and video of this meeting 
and will be kept as a permanent part of these minutes.*** 
 


